
 
 
 

February 10, 2025 Committee of the Whole Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
The following order of business may be changed by majority vote of the Board at any meeting.     

 

 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices    ⚫    24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan 48036 

 
 
 

   * Indicates Board Action Needed   ** Indicates Roll Call Vote Needed 

 

A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call, Voting Meeting 

B. **Closed Session – Motion to enter closed session pursuant to Section 8(h) of the Open Meetings Act to 
discuss material exempt from discussion or disclosure by State or Federal statute, including the written 
opinion of legal counsel subject to attorney-client privilege. 

C. Hearing of School District Patrons 
Please note: The Board will provide 30 minutes for public comment and speakers will be asked to limit their comments to 5 minutes.  If you did not 
have a chance to speak, the Board will provide additional time at the end of the meeting for public comment. 
 

D. Superintendent’s Report 

1. District Update – Executive Summary of 100 Day Plan/Identify Superintendent Goal Setting Date 
2. Budget Update 

E. Department Updates 

F. Bond Program 

1. *Motion to Approve the Bond Ratification Resolution 
2. *Technology RFP 
3. *Flooring RFP 

G. MASB Board of Directors 2025 Election 

1.  MASB Candidate Selection for Vote 

H. Curriculum and Instruction Office 

1. Student Travel Requests 
2. Consortium Agreements and Program Participation 

a. Career Technical Education (CTE) Consortiums 
b. Early College of Macomb 
c. International Academy of Macomb (IAM) 
d. Southwest Macomb Technical Education Cooperative (SMTEC) Agreement 

I. Business Office  

1. Consent Agenda Items 

• Budget Report 

• Quarterly Budget Update 

• Payment Registers 

• Bid Award Recommendations 

• Purchases 

• Overtime Report 

• Summary of Investments 

• Summary of Wire Transfers 

• Accounts Payable Check Register Approval Reminder 
 

2. 2024 Summer Tax Collection Rates 

J. Human Resources Office 

1. *Employment Recommendations 

K. Hearing of School District Patrons Follow-up 



 
 
 

February 10, 2025 Committee of the Whole Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
The following order of business may be changed by majority vote of the Board at any meeting.     

 

 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices    ⚫    24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan 48036 

  

L. Board Member Comment 

M. *Adjournment 



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE  

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss    Sharon.Ross         John Da Via Sandra Hernden Andrew Parski Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

           
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: February 10, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Bond Ratification Resolution 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 

Background: 
On November 18, 2024, the Board adopted a resolution authorizing the issuance of School 

Building and Site Bonds, Series I, in an amount not to exceed One Hundred Eighty-Eight Million 

Seven Hundred Thousand Dollars ($188,700,000) for the year 2025. 

 

Current Status: 
In the Bond Resolution, the Board authorized the sale of the Bonds and delegated authority to 

the Superintendent and/or the Assistant Superintendent of Business & Operations, (as an 

“Authorized Officer”) to accept the offer from JP Morgan Securities to purchase the Bonds.   

 

Based upon the information provided by the district’s financial consulting firm, PFM, an offer 

was accepted by the Assistant Superintendent of Business and Operations to purchase the 

bonds, and the Board by way of this Ratification Resolution desires to ratify and affirm the 

acceptance of the offer. 

 

The demand was high for L’Anse Creuse bonds because of our good reputation and the large 

issue amount. The bonds will be issued in the aggregate principal of $101,465,000, with a true 

interest cost significantly lower than anticipated, which will result in approximately $1.2 million 

in savings to our taxpayers. 

  

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the attached bond ratification 

resolution as presented. 

KK/jh 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


 

 

L'Anse Creuse Public Schools, Macomb County, Michigan (the “Issuer”) 

A regular meeting of the board of education of the Issuer (the “Board”) was held in the 

_____________________________________, within the boundaries of the Issuer, on the 10th day 

of February, 2025, at _____ o’clock in the __.m. (the “Meeting”). 

The Meeting was called to order by _____________________, President. 

Present: Members                                 

Absent: Members                                 

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member ___________________ 

and supported by Member ____________________: 

WHEREAS: 

1. By resolution adopted on November 18, 2024 (the “Bond Resolution”), the Issuer 

authorized the issuance of not to exceed One Hundred Eighty-Eight Million Seven Hundred 

Thousand Dollars ($188,700,000) 2025 School Building and Site Bonds, Series I (the “Bonds”); 

and 

2. In the Bond Resolution, the Board authorized the sale of the Bonds and delegated 

authority to the Superintendent of Schools and/or the Assistant Superintendent of Business and 

Operations (each an “Authorized Officer”) to accept the offer of J.P. Morgan Securities LLC to 

purchase the Bonds subject to parameters established in the Bond Resolution; and 

3. Based upon information provided by the Issuer’s financial consulting firm, an 

Authorized Officer accepted an offer from J.P. Morgan Securities LLC, and the other underwriter 

listed in the bond purchase agreement (the “Underwriters”) to purchase the Bonds, and the Board 

desires to ratify and affirm the acceptance of the offer. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 

1. The Authorized Officer’s acceptance of the offer as set forth in the bond purchase 

agreement dated January 29, 2025 (the “Bond Purchase Agreement”), and the terms and conditions 

set forth therein, presented to the Authorized Officer to purchase the Bonds at a purchase price of 

$109,998,427.97, which is the par value of the Bonds, plus an original issue premium of 

$8,845,783.30, less the Underwriters’ discount of $312,355.33, is hereby ratified and affirmed. 

The Bonds shall be issued in the aggregate principal amount of $101,465,000 and designated 2025 

School Building and Site Bonds, Series I (General Obligation - Unlimited Tax). 

2. The Bonds shall be dated February 18, 2025, and shall mature on May 1 of the 

years 2027 to 2045, inclusive, and 2049, on which interest is payable commencing 

November 1, 2025 and semi-annually thereafter on May 1 and November 1, at the rate and in the 

principal amounts set forth in Exhibit A and shall be subject to optional and mandatory redemption 

as set forth herein. The Underwriters have agreed in the Bond Purchase Agreement that they shall 

initially offer the Bonds to the public at the yields set forth in Exhibit A hereto. 



 

 

2 

3. The Bonds or portions of Bonds in multiples of $5,000, maturing on or after May 

1, 2036, shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity, at the option of the Issuer in such order 

as the Issuer may determine and by lot within any maturity, on any date occurring on or after 

May 1, 2035, at par plus accrued interest to the redemption date. 

4. The Bonds due May 1, 2049, are term bonds subject to mandatory redemption in 

part, by lot, on the redemption dates and in the principal amounts set forth below and at a 

redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, without premium, together with interest 

thereon to the redemption date, as set forth below. 

Bonds due May 1, 2049 

 Redemption Date Principal Amount 

 May 1, 2046 $7,410,000 

 May 1, 2047   7,750,000 

 May 1, 2048  8,090,000 

 May 1, 2049 (maturity) 8,115,000 

When term bonds are purchased by the Issuer and delivered to the Paying Agent for 

cancellation or are redeemed in a manner other than by mandatory redemption, the principal 

amount of the term bonds affected shall be reduced by the principal amount of the Bonds so 

redeemed or purchased in the order determined by the Issuer. 

5. Notice of redemption of any Bond shall be given not less than thirty (30) days and 

not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption by mail to the registered 

owner’s or owners’ registered address shown on the registration books kept by the Paying Agent 

(the “Paying Agent”). The Bonds shall be called for redemption in multiples of $5,000, and Bonds 

of denominations of more than $5,000 shall be treated as representing the number of Bonds 

obtained by dividing the denomination of the Bond by $5,000, and such Bonds may be redeemed 

in part. The notice of redemption for Bonds redeemed in part shall state that upon surrender of the 

Bond to be redeemed a new Bond or Bonds in an aggregate principal amount equal to the 

unredeemed portion of the Bond surrendered shall be issued to the registered owner thereof. 

If less than all of the Bonds of any maturity shall be called for redemption, unless otherwise 

provided, the particular Bonds or portions of Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Paying 

Agent, in such manner as the Paying Agent in its discretion may deem proper, in the principal 

amounts designated by the Issuer. Any Bonds selected for redemption which are deemed to be 

paid in accordance with the provisions of the Bond Resolution and this resolution will cease to 

bear interest on the date fixed for redemption. Upon presentation and surrender of such Bonds at 

the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent, such Bonds shall be paid and redeemed. 

6. Blank Bonds with the manual or facsimile signatures of the President and Secretary 

affixed thereto, shall, at the direction of bond counsel and as necessary, be delivered to the Paying 

Agent for safekeeping to be used for registration and transfer of ownership.  

The Bonds shall be registered as to principal and interest and are transferable as provided 

in the Bond Resolution only upon the books of the Issuer kept for that purpose by the Paying 

Agent, by the registered owner thereof in person or by an agent of the owner duly authorized in 

writing, upon the surrender of the Bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory 



 

 

3 

to the Paying Agent duly executed by the registered owner or agent thereof and thereupon a new 

Bond or Bonds in the same aggregate principal amount and of the same maturity shall be issued to 

the transferee in exchange therefor as provided in the Bond Resolution, and upon payment of the 

charges, if any, therein provided. The Bonds are issuable in denominations of $5,000 or any 

integral multiple thereof not exceeding the aggregate principal amount for each maturity. 

If any Bond shall become mutilated, the Issuer, at the expense of the holder of the Bonds, 

shall furnish or cause to be furnished, and the Paying Agent shall authenticate and deliver, a new 

Bond of like tenor in exchange and substitution of the mutilated Bond, upon surrender to the 

Paying Agent of the mutilated Bond. If any Bond issued under this resolution shall be lost, 

destroyed or stolen, evidence of the loss, destruction or theft and indemnity may be submitted to 

the Paying Agent, and if satisfactory to the Paying Agent and the Issuer, the Issuer at the expense 

of the owner, shall furnish or cause to be furnished, and the Paying Agent shall authenticate and 

deliver a new Bond of like tenor and bearing the statement required by Act 354, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1972, as amended, being sections 129.131 to 129.134, inclusive, of the Michigan 

Compiled Laws, or any applicable law hereafter enacted, in lieu of and in substitution of the Bond 

so lost, destroyed or stolen. If any such Bond shall have matured or shall be about to mature, 

instead of issuing a substitute Bond, the Paying Agent may pay the same without surrender thereof. 

7. Upon delivery of the Bonds, the accrued interest, if any, shall be deposited in the 

Debt Retirement Fund for the Bonds and the balance of the Bond proceeds shall be used as follows: 

A. The approximate sum of $357,135.70 shall be used to pay the costs of issuance of 

the Bonds, and any balance remaining from that sum after paying the costs of issuance shall be 

deposited in the 2025 Capital Projects Fund. 

B. The sum of $109,641,292.27 shall be deposited to the 2025 Capital Projects Fund. 

8. The Preliminary Official Statement, dated January 21, 2025, is deemed final for 

purposes of SEC Rule 15c2-12(b)(1), relating to the Bonds and its use and distribution by the 

Underwriters is hereby authorized, approved and confirmed. 

9. An Authorized Officer is authorized and directed to execute and deliver the final 

Official Statement on behalf of the Issuer. An Authorized Officer is further authorized to approve, 

execute and deliver any amendments and supplements to the final Official Statement necessary to 

assure that the statements therein are true, as of the time the Bonds are delivered to the 

Underwriters, and that it does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact and does not omit 

to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements, in light of the circumstances 

under which they were made, not misleading. In the absence of an Authorized Officer, the 

President may execute the above documents. 

10. The President and Secretary are authorized to execute a Certificate of the District 

Regarding Covenants and Representations which, in part, will enable the Underwriter to comply 

with Rule 15c2-12 under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with the offering 

and sale of the Bonds. 

11. The Issuer hereby ratifies and affirms the appointment of UMB Bank, N.A., Grand 

Rapids, Michigan, as Paying Agent-Bond Registrar and directs an Authorized Officer to execute 

for and on behalf of the Issuer a Paying Agent-Bond Registrar Agreement. 



 

 

4 

12. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions 

of this resolution are hereby rescinded. 

Ayes:  Members                 

Nays:  Members                  

Resolution declared adopted. 

  

Secretary, Board of Education 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of L'Anse 

Creuse Public Schools, Macomb County, Michigan, hereby certifies that the foregoing constitutes 

a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at the Meeting, the original of which 

is part of the Board’s minutes. The undersigned further certifies that notice of the Meeting was 

given to the public pursuant to the provisions of the Open Meetings Act (Act 267, Public Acts of 

Michigan, 1976, as amended). 

  

Secretary, Board of Education 

FGH/baf 

 



 

 

5 

EXHIBIT A

 



24400 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD, CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI 48036-1305 586-783-6550 586-783-6556 FAX  WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status in its programs, services, 
activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools Administration, 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, 
Clinton Township, MI 48036, (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

 

 
 

 
 

 

LARRY F. BRENDER SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

 
Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

TECHNOLOGY DEPARTMENT 

 

Brandon Streng 
DIRECTOR FOR TECHNOLOGY 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Initiator:  Brandon Streng    
  
Board Meeting:  February 10, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:   Technology Design Services for 2024 Bond Program Recommendation 
 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
 

Background: 
After the passing of the 2024 Bond Program in November the Business Office, Operations and Technology 
Departments chose to seek proposals from professional Technology Designers for the purpose of assisting 
the district with designing and implementing several technology components of the Bond Program. In order 
to ensure the district receives the top-quality service at an affordable cost we initiated a competitive bid 
process by releasing a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Technology Designer Services for 2024 Bond Program. 
The district’s Bond Program includes approximately $29,055,349.00 allocated for technology spending with 
approximately $21,138,195.00 in projects identified in the RFP and approximately $7,917,154.00 that the 
district intends to purchase without the assistance of Technology Designer Services. 
  

Current Status: 
The district received five bids for Technology Design Services. All of the bids were evaluated by a committee made 
up of members from the Technology Department, Business Office, and Operations Department. Three Technology 
Designers were selected for interviews after eliminating an incomplete bid and the highest cost bid. After 
conducting interviews and reviewing their references it was determined that Integrated Design Solutions’ (IDS) bid 
met all of the requirements and their services would be the best fit for the district. The funds for their contract will 
be drawn from the Bond based off a percentage cost of the work. 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 

Administration recommends that the Board motion to award Technology Design Services for 2024 Bond 

Program to Integrated Design Solutions in the amount of $1,181,000.00 (5.59% cost of the work) as 

presented. 

 

 
 



Service Description:

Factor

%Weight* Rating** Weight*** Rating** Weight*** Rating** Weight*** Rating** Weight*** Rating** Weight***

20 5 20.00 4 16.00 4 16.00 2 8.00 3 12.00

Add. Services/Reimbursables 10 4 8.00 3 6.00 5 10.00 2 4.00 4 8.00

10 5 10.00 1 2.00 5 10.00 4 8.00 5 10.00

10 5 10.00 2 4.00 5 10.00 5 10.00 4 8.00

10 5 10.00 3 6.00 5 10.00 4 8.00 4 8.00

15 4 12.00 3 9.00 5 15.00 5 15.00 4 12.00

15 4 12.00 3 9.00 5 15.00 5 15.00 4 12.00

5 5 5.00 3 3.00 5 5.00 5 5.00 4 4.00

5 4 4.00 2 2.00 5 5.00 2 2.00 3 3.00

100 **** 91 57 96 75 77

Title:

***Service Provider Weight=(Factor %Weight) x (Service Provider Rating) x (.2) 
****Total Factor %Weight must=100%

Comments:

**Service Provider Rating: 1=Poor 2=Fair 3=Good 4=Better 5=Best

Director for Technology

Approved by:

Date:

Barton Malow, Integrated Design Solutions (IDS), and 
Wright & Hunter were offered interviews. Plante Moran 
did not make the interview list due to being the highest 
bidder, and Communication by Design was missing 
pages in all copies of their bids. Integrated Design 
Solutions gave a great, customized presenation during 
their interview and has a dedicated technology-specific 
team that will be assigned to L'Anse Creuse.*Factor %Weight=Weight of each factor where Price is the heaviest weight

Evaluation  Factors* Barton Malow

Selected Service Provider: Integrated Design Solutions (IDS)

Brandon Streng

2/4/2024

Adherence to Specifications

Total Ratings:

Interview/Presentation

Management Capabilities

Financial Stability

Personnel Qualifications

BID EVALUATION WORKSHEET

Integrated Design 
Solutions Plante Moran Wright & Hunter

Service Provider Service Provider

12/20/2024

Service Provider 
Communication by 

Design

Service Provider Service Provider 

Bid Opening Date:

School District References

Understands Needs

Base Pricing

Technology Designer Services for 2024 Bond Program

District Name: L'Anse Creuse Public Schools

Page 1 of 1



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

SUPPORT SERVICES 
 

Don Gratton 
                 DIRECTOR FOR OPERATIONS 

 

Randy T. Baker 
SUPERVISOR FOR  

MAINTENANCE & CUSTODIAL SERVICES  
 

Kim Bryer and Holly Vitale 
SUPERVISORs FOR TRANSPORTATION 

24400 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1305 586-783-6550 586-783-6556 FAX WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

LARRY F. BRENDER SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

 
 

 

  
 
 

Initiator:  Don Gratton 
 
Board Meeting: February 10, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Tenniswood, Lobbestael and Yacks flooring Projects 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 

Background: 
As part of the 2024 Bond, flooring replacement at Tenniswood, Lobbestael, and Yacks 
Elementary Schools was identified as a critical need. Partners in Architecture worked with the 
bond team and building Administrators to determine colors and design scheme for each 
building based on district wide standards that have been created. 
 
 
Current Status: 
Bids were solicited for flooring replacement at all 3 buildings with multiple alternates to ensure 
we were able to stay within the predetermined budget. Five companies submitted bids, with 
Omega Floors from Harrison Twp. providing the lowest bid for all 3 buildings of $1,300,200.00. 
A post bid interview was held with Omega that included Partners in Architecture, Barton Malow 
and myself. It was determined that Omega had a complete bid and are able to satisfactorily 
complete the flooring work at all 3 buildings. These projects will be funded using bond dollars. 
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration is seeking the Board to approve the flooring projects to be completed at 
Tenniswood, Lobbestael, and Yacks Elementary Schools with a bid cost of $1,300,200.00 and a 
contingency of $94,453.00, for a total of $1,394,653.00. 



                                                                                             Building Innovative Solutions   

Barton Malow Builders | 26500 American Dr. Southfield, MI 48034 

 

 
February 5, 2025 
 
Mr. Keith Howell 
Superintendent 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard   
Clinton Township, MI 48036 
 
Subject: Bid Package No. 25-01 Award Recommendations     
 
Dear Mr. Howell, 
 
On February 3, 2025, formal bids were received for L’Anse Creuse Public Schools Bid Package 25-
01, Flooring Replacement at Lobbestael Elementary School, Tenniswood Elementary School, and 
Yacks Elementary School.  Upon review of the proposals and a post-bid interview with the lowest 
bidder in conjunction with the Partners in Architecture, Barton Malow is prepared to recommend 
the following actions concerning the award of a contract.   

The apparent low bidder has been determined to be the responsive low bidder.  The base bid 
consists of replacement of classroom, office, and corridor flooring.  To enhance bid result 
opportunities, multiple spaces were separated from the base bid as alternates.  As the attached 
bid tabulation summary indicates, Alternates 1 through 4 are included in the recommended 
award amount to replace flooring in the media centers, cafeterias, gymnasiums, and resource 
rooms, respectively.  Alternates 5, 5A, 6, and 6A are not included in the recommendation since 
they are for alternative flooring to the base bid flooring.  The base bid flooring materials are all 
proven durable, low maintenance products having been placed in schools for many years now.  
We recommend the following contract award: 

Bid Category #096500 Flooring    

Omega Floors (Harrison Township, MI)      $1,300,200.00   

 
Not included in the contract award amount is a construction contingency for unforeseen conditions 
and additional work.  With an allocated contingency of $94,543.00, the total project costs for work 
installed are on budget at $1,394,743.  General Conditions costs for such items as final cleaning, 
dumpsters, and permitting are a portion of the indirect costs identified in the bond application. 

 
Sincerely, 

 

Samuel Esser, P.E., CCM, LEED AP 
Sr. Project Manager 
 
Attachments:   L’Anse Creuse Public Schools BP #25-01 Bid Tabs  
 
cc:   K. Konon (LCPS), D. Gratton (LCPS), M. Malone (PIA)  



Alte
rn

at
es

#1
 - 

Flo
or F

in
ish

 U
pdat

es
 in

 M
ed

ia 
Cen

te
rs

#2
 - 

Flo
or F

in
ish

 U
pdat

es
 in

 C
af

et
er

ias

#3
 - 

Flo
or F

in
ish

 U
pdat

es
 in

 G
ym

nas
iu

m
s

#4
 - 

Flo
or F

in
ish

 U
pdat

es
 in

 R
es

ourc
es

 

Are
as

#5
 - 

M
CT s

witc
h to

 LV
T

#5
A - 

M
CT s

witc
h to

 LV
T -

 C
af

et
er

ia 
Only

#6
 - 

CPT M
at

er
ial

 A
lte

rn
at

e M
an

ufa
ctu

re
r

#6
A - 

CPT A
lte

rn
at

e M
an

ufa
ct

ure
r -

 M
ed

ia 

Cen
te

rs 
Only

L'Anse Creuse Public Schools BP#25-01  Bid Tabs
Bid Category Company Award Total Base Bid Lobbestael Elementary 

Base Bid

Tenniswood Elementary 

Base Bid

Yacks Elementary 

Base Bid

Floooring Omega Floors
$1,300,200.00 $899,200.00 $300,000.00 $289,200.00 $310,000.00 $58,000.00 $100,000.00 $210,000.00 $33,000.00 -$60,000.00 -$17,000.00 -$29,000.00 -$2,600.00

Floooring DF Floor Covering
$1,334,795.00 $953,779.00 $307,030.00 $316,102.00 $330,647.00 $68,695.00 $93,059.00 $187,305.00 $31,957.00 -$102,133.00 $65,604.00 $19,182.00 $68,635.00

Floooring Turner Brooks
$1,374,900.00 $970,220.00 $312,960.00 $326,790.00 $330,470.00 $58,200.00 $91,500.00 $217,425.00 $37,555.00 -$60,387.00 -$19,500.00 $0.00 $0.00

Floooring Premier Tile Design Inc.
$1,792,200.00 $1,165,200.00 $386,300.00 $387,600.00 $391,300.00 $109,000.00 $143,000.00 $312,000.00 $63,000.00 -$46,000.00 $0.00 $14,600.00 $0.00

Floooring Shock Brothers
$2,379,400.00 $1,477,950.00 $394,875.00 $365,500.00 $717,575.00 $507,000.00 $117,300.00 $265,525.00 $11,625.00 -$32,850.00 -$8,475.00 $15,325.00 $1,825.00

0



BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski        Al Doss                               Sharon Ross                John Da Via                   Sandra Hernden                   Andrew Parski                   Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT          VICE PRESIDENT            SECRETARY                  TREASURER                 TRUSTEE                                      TRUSTEE                                   TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status in its 
programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
Administration, 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, MI 48036, (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 
783-6300. 

 

 
 

 
 

 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD 
CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036 

586.783.6300 
586.783.6310 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

 

 

 
 
 
 

 
Initiator:  Keith Howell    
  
Board Meeting:  February 10, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:   MASB Candidate Selection for Vote 
 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background:   
The Board as a whole is eligible to select a candidate to fill the open seat for Region 8 on the MASB Board of 
Directors. The attached booklet provides election details and backgrounds on each of the candidates. 
 
Current Status:  
The deadline to submit the completed ballot is by 1:00 p.m. on Wednesday, March 5, 2025. Once the Board 
chooses a candidate, the ballot is submitted electronically by the executive assistant. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration will recommend the Board motion to approve the selection of a candidate to fill the 
open seat for Region 8 on the MASB Board of Directors. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
KH/cg 

 



2025



2025 ELECTIONS 32 CANDIDATES FOR MASB BOARD of  DIRECTORS

Section 2. Active Members. The board of education of any public school district in Michigan may 
become an active member of the Association. Active members of the Association shall be divided into 
eight regions. The regions shall be designated according to intermediate school district boundaries. The 
regions shall be as follows: 

Region 1. Copper Country ISD, Delta-Schoolcraft ISD, Dickinson-Iron ISD, Eastern Upper Peninsula 
ISD, Gogebic-Ontonagon ISD, Marquette-Alger RESA and Menominee County ISD. 

Region 2. Alpena-Montmorency-Alcona ESD, Charlevoix- Emmet ISD, Cheboygan-Otsego-Presque Isle 
ESD, COOR ISD, Iosco RESA, Manistee ISD, Northwest Education Services and Wexford-Missaukee 
ISD. 

Region 3. Ionia County ISD, Kent ISD, Mecosta-Osceola ISD, Montcalm Area ISD, Muskegon Area 
ISD, Newaygo County RESA, Ottawa Area ISD and West Shore ESD. 

Region 4. Bay-Arenac ISD, Clare-Gladwin RESD, Clinton County RESA, Gratiot-Isabella RESD, Midland 
County ESA, Saginaw ISD and Shiawassee RESD. 

Region 5. Genesee ISD, Huron ISD, Lapeer County ISD, Sanilac ISD, St. Clair County RESA and 
Tuscola ISD. 

Region 6. Allegan Area ESA, Barry ISD, Berrien RESA, Branch ISD, Calhoun ISD, Heritage Southwest 
ISD, Kalamazoo RESA, St. Joseph County ISD and Van Buren ISD. 

Region 7. Eaton RESA, Hillsdale County ISD, Ingham ISD, Jackson County ISD, Lenawee ISD, 
Livingston ESA, Monroe County ISD and Washtenaw ISD. 

Region 8. Macomb ISD, Oakland Schools and Wayne RESA. 

Active members shall also be divided into the following seven groups based on pupil membership. 

Group I  All intermediate districts; 

Group II  School districts with a pupil membership of 0 - 1,400; 

Group III  School districts with a pupil membership of 1,401 - 2,500; 

Group IV  School districts with a pupil membership of 2,501 - 5,000; 

Group V  School districts with a pupil membership of 5,001 - 11,000; 

Group VI  School districts with a pupil membership of 11,001 - 40,000; and

Group VII  School districts with a pupil membership more than 40,000. 

Board of Directors’ Elections—Candidate Information 4 
and Email Voting Procedures

Region 6 (One-Year Term)
TiAnna Harrison  Kalamazoo Public Schools, Kalamazoo County  5
Elizabeth O’Dell St. Joseph County ISD, St. Joseph County 6

Region 7 (Three-Year Term)
Guillermo Z. Lopez Lansing School District, Ingham County  7
Cory McLaughlin Jefferson Schools, Monroe County  8
Jack Temsey Eaton RESA, Eaton County 9

Region 8 (Three-Year Term)
Jason Babbage  Allen Park Public Schools, Wayne County  10
Dr. Anisha Hannah  Pontiac School District, Oakland County  11
Paul Kolin  Bloomfield Hills Schools, Oakland County  12
Roderick Means  Westwood Community School District, Wayne County   13
Randel Meisner   Fitzgerald Public Schools, Macomb County   14
Scott Wallace Fraser Public Schools 15
Ursula (Wester) Rogers   Romulus Community Schools, Wayne County   16
Lisa Valerio-Nowc   Clintondale Community Schools, Macomb County   17

Note: Incumbents are bolded

MASB Bylaws – Article IV – Membership Table of Contents



2025 ELECTIONS 54 CANDIDATES FOR MASB BOARD of  DIRECTORS

This year, eight seats on the MASB Board of Directors are up for election.  
 
The MASB Board of Directors is comprised of 23 members, including three at-large directors. Sixteen directors shall be elected from 
the eight regions, with two elected from each region; and one director per group shall be elected from Groups V, VI and VII. Directors 
are elected by active member school boards and, each year, several seats are up for election. The MASB President will nominate a 
member to serve as an at-large director, subject to Board approval.   
 
Board Limitations: 
Article VIII, Section 6 of the MASB Bylaws permits only one director to be elected or appointed from any one local or intermediate 
school district board.  
 
According to MASB Bylaws Article VIII, Section 8, if any nomination for the Board of Directors is unopposed, the Board of Directors 
shall declare the unopposed candidate elected without conducting an election for the uncontested group or region. 
 
This year, the following seats on the MASB Board are up for election (one seat each, three-year terms unless otherwise noted): 
Regions 1 (two-year term), 3, 4, 6 (open seat; one-year term), 7, 8 (open seat) and Groups V and VI. If you’re unsure of your 
district’s region or group, please see the list on page 2.  
 
• Region 1 will continue to be represented by Kristen Cambensy, Marquette Area Public Schools, (unopposed, no ballots will 

be sent) 
• Region 3 will continue to be represented by Rick Dernberger, Zeeland Public Schools and Ottawa Area Intermediate School 

District, (unopposed, no ballots will be sent) 
• Region 4 will continue to be represented by John Tramontana, DeWitt Public Schools,  (unopposed, no ballots will be sent) 
• Group V will continue to be represented by Stephen Hyer, Clarkston Community Schools, (unopposed, no ballots will be sent)
• Group VI will continue to be represented by Marc Siegler, Walled Lake Consolidated Schools, (unopposed, no ballots will be 

sent) 
 
Voting in Regions 6, 7 and 8 will take place via an online ballot. No local district/ISD funds can be used to campaign for anyone 
running for a seat. To help your board make an informed decision, the following pages contain background information and 
statements from each of the candidates.

Each district received ONE ballot, which was emailed to the superintendent secretary on record with MASB on Friday, Jan. 24, 2025. 
These ballots CANNOT be forwarded to anyone else. Once your board makes a decision on which candidate it wishes to vote for, 
please convey this information to your superintendent secretary.

 
Completed ballots must be cast and confirmed by the superintendent secretary by 1 p.m. on Wednesday, March 5, 2025.

Unofficial election results will be available on the voicemail recording at 517.327.5915 as soon as possible, but generally after 2 
p.m. on the deadline date. They will also be sent out via email that afternoon. Official results will be approved at the March 14, 2025, 
Board of Directors’ meeting, which newly elected directors should plan to attend. 
 
To summarize: 
• Ballot deadline is 1 p.m. on Wednesday, March 5, 2025. 
• MASB would like to remind all candidates for the MASB Board of Directors that no school district funds can be used for 

campaigning during the election. This rule prohibits a candidate from using their school district email account to send messages 
to other school board members. Therefore, a personal email account must be used for campaigning purposes when running for 
the MASB Board of Directors. If you have any questions about what may or may not constitute an expenditure of school district 
funds, please contact MASB’s Legal Counsel Brad Banasik, J.D. at bbanasik@masb.org or 517.327.5929.

• An electronic file containing the physical addresses and email addresses for the voting group or region shall be made available 
to each candidate running for election to the board of directors. The revokable license to use the addresses shall be limited to 
contacting school board members to share information about the MASB Board of Directors’ election.

• Have questions? Contact Cheryl Huffman at 517.327.5915 or chuffman@masb.org. 

Board of Directors’ Elections—Candidate Information 
and Email Voting Procedures

Region 6 (One-Year Term)

TiAnna Harrison
Kalamazoo Public Schools, Kalamazoo County 

Time served 
on this board: MASB Certification:

Certified Boardmember Award 

Award of Merit 

Award of Distinction 

Master Boardmember 

Master Diamond Offices held:
President, Vice 

President, Secretary 
and Treasurer

years

Election Statement:

My name is TiAnna Harrison, and as the current Board 
President for Kalamazoo Public Schools Board of Education, I 
bring over a decade of governance and leadership experience. 
Appointed in 2014, and reelected in 2020, I have had the 
honor of serving my community in various capacities, including 
Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer. 

Through these positions, I have had a firsthand view of the 
challenges and opportunities in education, especially as we 
work to ensure all students have equitable access to high-
quality learning experiences. 

My experience serving in a district with diverse needs has 
given me a comprehensive understanding of the complexities 
facing school boards across Michigan, and I believe I can bring 
valuable insights to MASB. I am passionate about the power of 
public education to transform lives. Our work as school board 
members is critical in ensuring that every child has access to a 
high-quality education, no matter where they live. 

From advocating for equitable funding to addressing the 
mental health needs of students, the role of school boards 
has never been more important. Through my years of service, I 
have seen firsthand how strategic decision- making, thoughtful 
governance, and strong community partnerships can improve 
outcomes for students. I am seeking a seat on the MASB 
Board of Directors because I believe that the challenges we 
face in Michigan’s education system require a unified and 
strategic approach. 

I am particularly focused on the importance of state-level 
policies that allow local school boards to address the unique 
needs of their districts. I want to ensure that Michigan 
school boards have the tools and support they need to make 
informed decisions that benefit all students. 

From ensuring equitable funding to supporting the mental 
and emotional well-being of students and  staff, I am eager 
to contribute my experience and insights to support school 
boards across the state and advocate for policies that will 
create better outcomes for Michigan’s children. 

I would be honored to not only serve on the MASB Board of 
Directors, but also to continue advocating for policies that 
prioritize the needs of students, support educators, and 
strengthen our communities. Together, we can ensure that 
every Michigan student has the opportunity to succeed. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

TiAnna L. Harrison 

Kalamazoo Public Schools 

Trustee – Board of Education 

10



2025 ELECTIONS 76 CANDIDATES FOR MASB BOARD of  DIRECTORS

Region 7 (Three-Year Term)

Guillermo Z Lopez
Lansing School District, Ingham County

Election Statement:

As we welcome the new year, we are also aware that changes in education funding from the federal government are 
very possible. As your director from Region 7, I will work closely with our MASB staff and pay close attention to how 
these changes may affect our educational system here in Michigan. I will also continue to support the work MASB 
has done in the area of equity in education in all its forms. Additionally, I will continue supporting districts that need 
training but are not in a position to cover the costs. I very much appreciate MASB staff who are continually looking at 
ways that we can expand these funding efforts. Finally, I hope you have enjoyed the newsletter coming directly from 
Region 7. 

INCUMBENT

Region 6 (One-Year Term)

Elizabeth O’Dell 
St. Joseph County ISD, St. Joseph County 

Election Statement:

The MASB is our collective voice on education at the state level, and it allows board members to be informed 
about educational issues. I think the Director for the Region’s role is to ensure that our voice is heard as the MASB 
discusses issues and concerns. The Past President, Kathleen Moore, was able to model how to accomplish that task 
positively. I cannot fill her shoes; I am unsure if anyone can. 

I have been an active St. Joseph County ISD member for 27 years. I have taken advantage of opportunities to learn 
about best practices for serving and supporting the education process in our communities. I have held various 
positions, from member to president. 

I have worked with the parent-teacher association, band, and athletic booster clubs. I have served on the special 
education advisory committee. I have enjoyed serving as a delegate to MASB membership  meetings in my county. 
Through this process, I have learned what various boards are concerned about as they present resolutions and 
amendments to the Board of Directors, which has deepened my  understanding of how our collective needs are 
connected. 

I have and will continue to advocate for a strong public education. My children and I are products of public education. 
I obtained my bachelor’s degree from Ball State University and my graduate degree from Western Michigan 
University. 

I am not new to service, advocacy, listening, and striving to assist others to make positive change. I am a retired CEO 
of St. Joseph County Community Mental Health and use my time currently as a volunteer in my church, for American 
Red Cross Disaster Relief, as a substitute teacher, as well as working with a variety of social action services through 
my sorority, Delta Sigma Theta Sorority, Incorporated. 

I am seeking this position to advocate for the needs of our small and large communities. I am a champion for public 
education, and with your vote, I can take my commitment to this service to the next level. 

Time served 
on this board: MASB Certification:

Certified Boardmember Award 

Award of Merit 

Award of Distinction 

Master Boardmember 

Master Diamond Offices held:
President, Vice 

President, Secretary 
and Treasurer

years27
Time served 

on this board: MASB Certification:
Certified Boardmember Award 

Award of Merit 

Award of Distinction 

Master Boardmember 

Offices held:
President, and 

Treasurer

years24



2025 ELECTIONS 98 CANDIDATES FOR MASB BOARD of  DIRECTORS

Region 7 (Three-Year Term)

Jack Temsey 
Eaton RESA, Eaton County 

Time served 
on this board:

Time served on 
another board: MASB Certification:

Certified Boardmember Award 

Award of Merit 

Award of Distinction 

Master Boardmember 

Master Diamond 

Master Platinum 
Offices held:

Offices held:
President, Vice 

President, Secretary 
and TreasurerSecretary and 

Treasurer

years
years

Potterville 
Public Schools

Election Statement:

As a Board of Education Trustee, I feel we are the voice 
for our children. We need to utilize this voice to ensure 
we can offer our children the education they deserve, 
regardless of the struggles that we face behind the 
scenes. 

We need to direct this voice to those who create 
legislation that we feel will adversely affect public 
education, as well as remember to offer praise to those 
who show us favor and offer to help. I believe the voice 
of our boards and communities can make a difference. 
I have strived to become the best board member I can 
be. One of the ways that I have tried to accomplish this is 
by becoming certified through the MASB’s CBA program. 
I have gained a wealth of knowledge by attending 
classes, conferences and other various events as well as 
networking with board members from around the state. 

Public education is as diverse as our country. There 
are no single fix-all solutions that work for every 
school district. I feel that bringing the voice of small 
communities and small districts to the forefront is 
important. I would like to continue advocating to provide 

adequate and equitable funding for ALL districts. 
Adequate funding is sufficient funding to provide basic 
schooling. Equitable funding is based on fairness.  

I previously served the Potterville Public Schools Board 
of Education for eight years. During this time, I served 
on the Policy, Community Relations and Technology 
Committees, as well as Secretary and Treasurer. I have 
been an Eaton RESA Trustee for eight years, serving 
on the Building and Grounds and Finance and Audit 
Committees as well as Secretary, Vice President and 
Treasurer. I am currently serving again as President. 

Additionally, I have served MASB as a member of the 
Curriculum and Instruction Committee and Government 
Relations Committee plus served as its Vice Chairman, 
also on the Resolutions and Bylaws committee, and as 
its Vice Chairman. I am currently serving again on the 
Government Relations Committee as its Vice Chairman. 

I would be honored to serve on the MASB Board of 
Directors to represent you, our Region, and our students. 
I want to bring your voices to the table to further benefit 
the future of public education. 

88

Region 7 (Three-Year Term)

Cory McLaughlin 
Jefferson Schools, Monroe County 

Election Statement:

Since joining the Jefferson School Board in 2014, I have been dedicated to ensuring that every decision we make 
is in the best interest of our students. I am passionate about creating opportunities for all learners and believe 
that every child deserves access to a high-quality education that meets their unique needs and aspirations. 

Career and Technical Education (CTE) programs are a priority for me because they provide students with real-
world skills and open doors to meaningful careers. I also strongly advocate for advanced classes to challenge and 
inspire high-achieving students, ensuring they are prepared for post-secondary education and beyond. Equally 
important is my commitment to special education, as I believe every child, regardless of ability, deserves the 
resources and support to thrive. 

My experience on the Jefferson School Board has taught me the importance of collaboration, fiscal responsibility 
and community engagement. I bring a student-centered approach to decision-making and strive to build 
partnerships that benefit our schools. Serving on the MASB Board of Directors would allow me to expand this 
work, sharing best practices and advocating for policies that empower all districts to succeed. 

I am running for this position because I am deeply committed to advancing education in Michigan and ensuring 
that every child has access to the tools and opportunities they need to achieve their full potential. 

Time served 
on this board: MASB Certification:

Certified Boardmember (CBA 101) 

Offices held:
President and 

Secretary

years11



2025 ELECTIONS 1110 CANDIDATES FOR MASB BOARD of  DIRECTORS

Region 8 (Three-Year Term)

Dr. Anisha Hannah 
Pontiac School District, Oakland County 

Election Statement:

I view education as the key to unlocking the door of possibilities. I believe that every child should have access to 
a quality education. One that will equip them with the skills and knowledge to lead productive, fruitful lives and 
make a positive contribution to society. I believe that every student can learn; some may require the use of different 
methodologies. My concern about the educational system is that too much emphasis has been placed on test scores 
as opposed to the success of the whole child. 

Currently, as the Director of Strategic Partnership & Initiatives with the Pontiac Collective Impact Partnership, I 
lead collaborative efforts with nonprofits, government agencies, and educational institutions to enhance economic 
and academic outcomes. In this role, I have successfully developed initiatives and set goals for the City of Pontiac 
with partners that support Oakland County’s goal of 80 by 30, ensuring program sustainability and growth. My 
experience as Board President with the City of Pontiac School Board of Education has further honed my ability to 
manage complex budgets, engage with diverse stakeholders, and advocate for initiatives that benefit community 
members from various socioeconomic backgrounds. These experiences have equipped me with the skills to identify 
challenges, implement data-driven improvements, and ensure that programs achieve measurable outcomes. 

It is my desire to serve on the MASB Board of Directors to provide a voice for the minority students that reside in 
lower socioeconomic backgrounds. The views and opinions of minority students and families are often overlooked 
and unheard. Serving on the MASB Board of Directors would allow me the opportunity to represent a demographic 
and community who benefits the most from public education. 

I am enthusiastic about the opportunity to learn and contribute to impactful programs and policies that will support 
children in Michigan’s school districts. 

I am eager to bring my dedication to education and the Pontiac community to the MASB platform. 

Region 8 (Three-Year Term)

Jason Babbage 
Allen Park Public Schools, Wayne County 

Election Statement:

I am an alumnus and lifelong resident of the Allen Park Public School District. Family and education are at the top 
of my interests, loves and passions, and certainly go hand in hand with the MASB Board of Directors position for 
Region 8. Inspired by family members holding political positions leading the way and showing me what it is to serve 
the community; I can only hope to follow in their footsteps and use my unique position and family connections to 
influence policy. 

I am looking forward to serving on the MASB Board of Directors to help promote a unified and communitive board 
of directors that focuses on the major issues facing us in the educational community. Some of these issues include 
unfunded policies, declining enrollment, higher education standards, advances in educational technology, and 
more. To navigate these issues, we need to be open to change and willing to support new ideas whether it is adding 
sensory rooms or going from textbooks to technology. 

I hold a master’s degree in automotive systems engineering and a bachelor’s degree in mechanical engineering from 
U-M Dearborn, and work at Ford Motor Company as an engineer in exterior automotive lighting and am considered 
one of the top experts in headlamp aim (HLA). I achieved my MASB Level 2 award of merit and look forward to 
getting more MASB classes under my belt. I have two children attending Allen Park schools and it’s family that’s 
been the driving force of involvement in the community and schools. 

I would like to serve on the MASB Board of Directors because I believe I will bring a different perspective, drive and 
policy influence that will be beneficial to Region 8.

Time served 
on this board: MASB Certification:

Certified Boardmember Award 

Award of Merit 

years2
Time served 

on this board: MASB Certification:
Certified Boardmember 

Award of Merit 

Award of Distinction

Offices held:
President and 

Secretary

years3



2025 ELECTIONS 1312 CANDIDATES FOR MASB BOARD of  DIRECTORS

Region 8 (Three-Year Term)

Roderick Means
Westwood Community School District, Wayne County

Election Statement:

As a passionate advocate for quality education, my vision for our educational system centers on equity, innovation 
and community engagement. Every student, regardless of background, should have access to high-quality 
educational opportunities that prepare them for future success. My primary concerns include addressing disparities 
in educational resources, integrating technology, and fostering strong partnerships within our communities. 

As a single parent of two young boys, I began as a little league baseball and football coach. I served a Cub and Boy 
Scout leader, from Tiger Cub Coordinator to Cubmaster and Assistance Boy Scout leader. I served on many Athletic 
and booster clubs in the High School. I spearheaded initiatives that improved academic outcomes and strengthened 
community ties. For the last 20 years, I have worked as an Application Developer at the University of Michigan Ann 
Arbor, gaining valuable insights into educational technology. 

I have actively contributed to the field of education beyond my immediate roles by serving on various MASB 
committees, including Government Relations, Bylaws and Policy, and Board Leadership and Training. These 
committees have allowed me to work collaboratively on critical issues affecting our schools and have deepened 
my understanding of governance and policy frameworks. Additionally, I have served as an MASB Board Mentor, 
supporting new board members in their roles and fostering effective leadership and governance. 

My decision to seek a position on the MASB Board of Directors stems from a deep commitment to effecting systemic 
change. Serving on the board will allow me to leverage my experience to advocate for equitable funding, support 
professional development for educators, and integrate technology to enhance learning. I am dedicated to fostering 
transparency and accountability to ensure that all decisions are in the best interest of our students. In conclusion, 
my extensive experience in education, coupled with my dedication to improving our educational system, uniquely 
positions me to contribute meaningfully to the MASB Board of Directors. I am eager to drive positive change, support 
our educators, and ensure every student has the opportunity to succeed. Thank you for considering my candidacy. 

Region 8 (Three-Year Term)

Paul Kolin
Bloomfield Hills Schools, Oakland County

Election Statement:

Education is the cornerstone of our society, shaping not only the minds of the next generation but also the future of 
our communities and the world. I believe that a high-quality education system equips students with the skills and 
knowledge necessary to thrive, fosters critical thinking, and nurtures a lifelong love of learning. Beyond academics, 
education must prepare individuals to engage as informed, empathetic and responsible citizens. 

My passion for education stems from witnessing its transformative power in my own life and in the lives of others. 
I firmly believe that every child deserves access to equitable opportunities, regardless of their background or 
circumstances. This requires a commitment to removing barriers, supporting educators, and fostering innovative 
practices that address the diverse needs of all learners. 

Serving on the MASB board is an opportunity to advocate for these values at a broader level. The Michigan 
Association of School Boards plays a pivotal role in strengthening public education by providing leadership, 
governance and support to local districts. As a board member, I would work collaboratively to ensure that policies 
and resources are aligned with the goal of fostering student success and community engagement. 

My background in Bloomfield Hills for the last 10 years and being a teacher in the past has equipped me with 
the skills to navigate complex challenges, analyze data-driven solutions, and build consensus among diverse 
stakeholders. I am committed to listening to educators, parents, and students to understand their needs and bring 
their voices to the decision-making table. 

By serving on the MASB board, I hope to contribute to a shared vision of educational excellence, ensuring that every 
child in Michigan receives the education they deserve. Together, we can create a stronger future for our students and 
our communities. 

Time served 
on this board: MASB Certification:

Certified Boardmember Award 

Award of Merit 

Award of Distinction 

Offices held:
President, Vice 

President, Secretary 
and Treasurer

years10
Time served 

on this board: MASB Certification:
Certified Boardmember Award 

Award of Merit 

Award of Distinction 

Master Boardmember 

Master Diamond 

Master Platinum 

President’s Award 

Offices held:
President, Vice 

President, Secretary 
and Treasurer

years28



2025 ELECTIONS 1514 CANDIDATES FOR MASB BOARD of  DIRECTORS

Region 8 (Three-Year Term)

Randel Meisner
Fitzgerald Public Schools, Macomb County

Election Statement:

CONCERNS: We need sustainable funding for public education at all levels. Teacher retention. Teacher shortages. 
Full funding for special education. Offset the MPSERS cost. 

EXPERIENCE: MISD Legislative Committee, MISD Budget Review, participate in annual legislative strategic planning 
sessions. Attend the state Annual Leadership Conferences and National School Board Conferences. Awarded the 
MASB President’s Award. 

I would appreciate a chance to serve on the MASB board of directors so that I can add a fresh viewpoint to the 
board. I enjoy working with other board members for a common goal. 

Time served 
on this board: MASB Certification:

Certified Boardmember Award 

Award of Merit 

Award of Distinction 

Master Boardmember 

Master Diamond 

Master Platinum 

President’s Award 

Offices held:
Vice President, 
Secretary and 

Treasurer

years12

Region 8 (Three-Year Term)

Scott Wallace
Fraser Public Schools

Election Statement:

Region 8 is comprised of many different students with many different backgrounds, and all deserve a quality 
education regardless of where they live. 

I am proud to serve in the same district where I, and my three children, have graduated from. I am an Eagle Scout 
and have coached soccer and basketball as well as served as an officer on the Board of Directors for the Fraser 
Soccer Club for four years. I have been the President of Fraser Public Schools Board of Education since 2022 and a 
board member since 2017. 

I have worked with the MASB since becoming a school board member and have seen the many good things that 
come from us all working towards making education in Michigan better for all of our kids. 

Working on the MASB legislative committee for three years I got to see up close how important it is for us to continue 
to be heard in Lansing and I hope to take this opportunity to continue making sure our region’s concerns are heard. I 
thank you for the opportunity to serve. 

Time served 
on this board: MASB Certification:

Certified Boardmember Award 

Award of Merit 

Award of Distinction 

Master Boardmember 

Offices held:
President, Vice 
President and 

Treasurer

years8



2025 ELECTIONS 1716 CANDIDATES FOR MASB BOARD of  DIRECTORS

Region 8 (Three-Year Term)

Lisa Valerio-Nowc
Clintondale Community Schools, Macomb County 

Election Statement:

As a librarian for over thirty years with experiences in school libraries, and in the classroom, I understand the 
complex issues in education today. Teachers and students are finding their classrooms changing almost daily with 
new technology, apps and tools that, at times, seem overwhelming. Added to this are the challenges that are faced 
every day of surviving in a society that seems to be controlled by “notifications” on our phones and computers. My 
aim is to make my school district a safe place to learn and grow. With this in mind, as a MASB Board member, I 
believe that my contributions will aid the organization in finding meaningful solutions that will help schools support 
their communities better. 

Education is not just a word that conveys what a person learns. It is what that person does with the education 
that makes an impact on our community and world. It is an honor to be a part of a profession that guides the next 
generation. I have been a School Librarian, Library Director of Baker College, and served in leadership positions in 
public libraries. Currently, I am the Assistant Manager/Children’s Librarian at Chaney Branch/Detroit Public Library. 
In each of these positions I have made it a goal to help children and adults with their lifelong pursuit of learning. In 
my opinion, once you stop learning, you stop growing. 

In closing, it is without a doubt in my mind that I am qualified and ready to serve as a Board of Director member for 
the MASB. I am ready to serve and make a positive impact with the organization. 

Time served 
on this board: MASB Certification:

Certified Boardmember Award 

Award of Merit 

Offices held:
Secretary

years2

Region 8 (Three-Year Term)

Ursula (Wester) Rogers 
Romulus Community Schools, Wayne County

Election Statement:

I am deeply passionate about ensuring that every student in Michigan has access to a high-quality, equitable 
education. However, there are significant challenges that must be addressed, including disparities in funding, access 
to resources, and the growing mental health needs of students. These issues disproportionately impact students 
from marginalized communities, and I firmly believe it is our collective responsibility to create a system that is 
inclusive, supportive, and designed to meet the needs of all learners. 

Throughout my career, I have had the privilege of working in various educational settings, including as a substitute 
teacher, secretary, human resources professional, and school board member. These roles have provided me 
with a firsthand understanding of the challenges educators face, from budget cuts to the increasing demands on 
teachers’ time and resources. Additionally, I have served on committees focused on policy, human resources, school 
improvement, and curriculum, gaining valuable insights into the intricacies of school governance. 

Beyond my professional experience, I have been actively involved with the Romulus Athletic Club for 24 years as 
treasurer and cheerleading coach for a youth football organization. This work has allowed me to connect with 
students in alternative ways, providing them with positive outlets to compete, grow, and discover what drives them. 
Through all of these experiences, I have gained a comprehensive understanding of how local school boards can 
influence state and national education policies. These experiences have strengthened my expertise in governance 
and advocacy, which I believe would be an asset to the MASB Board of Directors. 

I wish to serve on the MASB Board of Directors because I am committed to ensuring that Michigan’s school boards 
have the tools, resources, and support they need to advocate effectively for students. MASB is uniquely positioned to 
unite school boards across the state to address shared challenges, promote best practices, and advocate for policies 
that improve funding, access to resources, and student outcomes. I am eager to collaborate with fellow board 
members to create lasting, positive change for Michigan’s students and educators.

Thank you for considering my candidacy. 

Time served 
on this board: MASB Certification:

Certified Boardmember Award 

Award of Merit 

Award of Distinction 

Master Boardmember 

Offices held:
President, Secretary 

and Treasurer

years8



18 CANDIDATES FOR MASB BOARD of  DIRECTORS

2025

MISSION

VISION

To provide high-quality educational leadership services for all 
Michigan boards of education and to advocate for an equitable and 
exceptional public education that leads to improved outcomes for 
all students.

A well-governed, effective public school for every Michigan student.













Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT 

BUSINESS OFFICE 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
  ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  

  BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

Beth Disbrow 
  DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE  

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6312 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross   John Da VIa Sandra Hernden Andrew Parski Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT   SECRETARY   TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

Initiator: 

Board Meeting: 

Agenda Item:  

Kathy Konon, CPA  

February 10, 2025 

Budget Report 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other    _______________________ 

Background: 
This report provides the Board with a monthly expenditure overview by fund for the 
2024-2025 fiscal year, showing the original total budgeted expenditures, actual 
expenditures month-to-date, year-to-date encumbrances, and the remaining balance in 
each category as of the current month. 

Current Status: 
Attached is the Budget Report as of December 31, 2024. 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and is subject to approval by the 
Board of Education.  Administration will recommend that the Board motion to approve 
the Budget Report at their next Regular Board Meeting.  

KK/jh 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


 1/27/25  14.40.10                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  12/31   FISCAL PERIOD 06   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         1

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  1/27/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

11 GENERAL FUND

 111 Elementary Instruction                  29,284,446.00    2,271,426.48   11,134,251.01   13,174,453.99    4,975,741.00   16.99 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                         14,638,437.00    1,097,134.99    5,887,207.46    6,606,283.68    2,144,945.86   14.65 %
 113 High School                             21,248,908.00    1,569,143.23    8,050,989.52    9,216,391.66    3,981,526.82   18.73 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    283,188.00             .00      104,837.21             .00      178,350.79   62.97 %
 122 Special Education                       10,050,512.00      893,054.51    4,171,474.73    4,466,320.85    1,412,716.42   14.05 %
 125 Compensatory Education                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                  2,771,731.00      205,302.05    1,084,125.39    1,034,119.86      653,485.75   23.57 %
 211 Truancy/Absenteeism Serv                   290,092.00       24,858.87      127,994.65        1,500.00      160,597.35   55.36 %
 212 Guidance Services                        2,628,898.00      227,998.87    1,150,160.08    1,353,376.87      125,361.05    4.76 %
 213 Health Services                            361,306.00       23,157.07      144,639.56       24,273.78      192,392.66   53.24 %
 214 Psychological Services                     914,824.00       72,096.39      345,614.31      428,423.97      140,785.72   15.38 %
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                1,662,528.00      126,179.36      611,205.00      812,357.40      238,965.60   14.37 %
 216 Social Work Services                     1,571,828.00      113,442.68      547,410.92      726,888.86      297,528.22   18.92 %
 218 Teacher Consultant                         571,971.00       36,614.28      176,065.72      227,194.49      168,710.79   29.49 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                 1,218,877.00      102,164.91      461,930.31       64,771.16      692,175.53   56.78 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                    2,165,956.00      105,695.85      599,348.27      548,981.34    1,017,626.39   46.98 %
 222 Educational Media Service                1,008,555.00       83,859.28      403,392.74       62,715.47      542,446.79   53.78 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                  1,561,321.00      144,703.00      801,755.88      509,207.58      250,357.54   16.03 %
 229 Other Instr Staff Srvices                  121,588.00        9,049.21       62,247.47       38,451.68       20,888.85   17.18 %
 231 Board of Education                         270,040.00       15,075.11      209,177.79        3,183.50       57,678.71   21.35 %
 232 Executive Admin                          1,102,668.00       52,478.45      648,719.11      334,867.33      119,081.56   10.79 %
 241 Office of Principal                      8,830,188.00      703,629.71    3,995,607.44    2,696,282.20    2,138,298.36   24.21 %
 252 Fiscal Services                          1,633,683.00      102,619.03      889,232.96      439,113.22      305,336.82   18.69 %
 257 Internal Services                            3,000.00        3,726.65        5,204.23             .00        2,204.23-  73.47-%
 259 Other Business Services                     62,200.00        1,766.78        8,637.65             .00       53,562.35   86.11 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                 11,966,975.00      847,314.68    5,431,958.95      525,452.69    6,009,563.36   50.21 %
 266 Security Services                          306,960.00       24,673.65      147,709.76       93,717.47       65,532.77   21.34 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                     6,578,031.00      477,765.66    2,714,130.13      678,468.92    3,185,431.95   48.42 %
 282 Communication Services                     134,458.00       10,798.30       61,516.71       47,089.64       25,851.65   19.22 %
 283 Staff Services                           1,670,826.00      190,471.89      833,255.59      234,146.63      603,423.78   36.11 %
 284 Support Services Tech                    2,298,300.00      145,521.38    1,117,003.48      479,841.10      701,455.42   30.52 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                           555,320.00       18,223.49      397,221.00       42,302.90      115,796.10   20.85 %
 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

11 GENERAL FUND                    * TOTAL  127,767,615.00    9,699,945.81   52,324,025.03   44,870,178.24   30,573,411.73   23.92 %

12 ATHLETIC FUND

 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 266 Security Services                           10,000.00             .00          350.23             .00        9,649.77   96.49 %
 293 Athletic Activities                      2,654,921.00      275,321.77    1,432,732.11      249,397.97      972,790.92   36.64 %

12 ATHLETIC FUND                   * TOTAL    2,664,921.00      275,321.77    1,433,082.34      249,397.97      982,440.69   36.86 %

14 STATE GRANT FUND

 111 Elementary Instruction                     487,356.00       24,734.72      122,607.63      152,971.24      211,777.13   43.45 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                             26,133.00             .00        2,432.22             .00       23,700.78   90.69 %



 1/27/25  14.40.10                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  12/31   FISCAL PERIOD 06   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         2

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  1/27/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 113 High School                                  9,598.00             .00        6,979.53             .00        2,618.47   27.28 %
 118 Pre-school                               1,638,636.00      110,274.95      491,836.45        2,631.80    1,144,167.75   69.82 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                     31,118.00             .00             .00             .00       31,118.00  100.00 %
 125 Compensatory Education                   4,942,581.00      217,556.00    1,063,635.25      740,745.83    3,138,199.92   63.49 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                     83,100.00             .00             .00             .00       83,100.00  100.00 %
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                        206,897.00       14,200.85       64,444.64       56,063.81       86,388.55   41.75 %
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                     16,021.00          903.71       16,154.09             .00          133.09-    .83-%
 212 Guidance Services                          248,522.00       12,610.60      161,163.08       76,049.31       11,309.61    4.55 %
 213 Health Services                            432,930.00       22,108.26      142,237.14      142,978.62      147,714.24   34.11 %
 216 Social Work Services                       617,388.00       46,684.38      224,548.48      310,880.98       81,958.54   13.27 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      982,302.00       34,132.67      151,600.45      210,762.99      619,938.56   63.11 %
 222 Educational Media Service                   51,314.00        3,853.19       15,631.27       25,592.35       10,090.38   19.66 %
 225 Technology Assisted Inst                    14,946.00             .00           98.67             .00       14,847.33   99.33 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    493,871.00       31,054.35      199,582.41      147,924.13      146,364.46   29.63 %
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                     19,150.00             .00             .00             .00       19,150.00  100.00 %
 249 Other School Admin                                .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 252 Fiscal Services                             24,167.00        1,566.01        9,970.28        7,818.08        6,378.64   26.39 %
 257 Internal Services                              840.00             .00             .00             .00          840.00  100.00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     10,313.00             .00        1,516.78             .00        8,796.22   85.29 %
 266 Security Services                           66,180.00        3,184.02        6,615.69             .00       59,564.31   90.00 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                        18,875.00          100.00          100.00             .00       18,775.00   99.47 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                           952.00             .00             .00             .00          952.00  100.00 %
 282 Communication Services                       4,800.00             .00             .00             .00        4,800.00  100.00 %
 283 Staff Services                              11,098.00             .00          616.25             .00       10,481.75   94.44 %
 284 Support Services Tech                          700.00             .00             .00             .00          700.00  100.00 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                           104,362.00        8,085.20       43,392.25          750.00       60,219.75   57.70 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                    26,939.00             .00        4,504.47             .00       22,434.53   83.27 %
 331 Community Activities                        10,081.00             .00        1,458.56             .00        8,622.44   85.53 %
 452 Site Improvement Services                   13,000.00        1,953.00        1,953.00             .00       11,047.00   84.97 %
 453 Architectur & Eng Servs                     10,000.00             .00             .00             .00       10,000.00  100.00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                    8,670.00             .00             .00             .00        8,670.00  100.00 %

14 STATE GRANT FUND                * TOTAL   10,612,840.00      533,001.91    2,733,078.59    1,875,169.14    6,004,592.27   56.57 %

15 FEDERAL GRANTS

 111 Elementary Instruction                     103,578.00        7,889.00       20,282.67       12,900.00       70,395.33   67.96 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                             51,220.00          804.59        3,567.55             .00       47,652.45   93.03 %
 113 High School                                       .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 118 Pre-school                                  67,512.00             .00             .00             .00       67,512.00  100.00 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    269,656.00             .00      105,234.01             .00      164,421.99   60.97 %
 122 Special Education                        2,248,814.00      156,021.46      733,459.77      965,155.62      550,198.61   24.46 %
 125 Compensatory Education                   1,051,767.00       44,715.12      260,875.93      231,628.78      559,262.29   53.17 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                     64,795.00        7,974.06       35,313.69             .00       29,481.31   45.49 %
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                         87,000.00        6,121.07       31,393.30       47,570.54        8,036.16    9.23 %
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                    110,602.00        8,539.24       42,250.08       53,343.81       15,008.11   13.56 %
 212 Guidance Services                           40,631.00        3,389.01       14,406.80             .00       26,224.20   64.54 %
 213 Health Services                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 214 Psychological Services                      40,359.00             .00       31,476.19             .00        8,882.81   22.00 %
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 216 Social Work Services                       112,841.00        7,859.48       37,199.11       51,184.70       24,457.19   21.67 %



 1/27/25  14.40.10                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  12/31   FISCAL PERIOD 06   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         3

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  1/27/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 218 Teacher Consultant                         581,993.00       45,233.31      209,323.37      297,570.40       75,099.23   12.90 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      729,470.00       42,108.39      230,022.07      251,601.24      247,846.69   33.97 %
 222 Educational Media Service                    5,747.00             .00             .00             .00        5,747.00  100.00 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    163,568.00       12,041.91       58,954.42       76,777.04       27,836.54   17.01 %
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 231 Board of Education                           2,000.00             .00             .00             .00        2,000.00  100.00 %
 232 Executive Admin                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 241 Office of Principal                               .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 252 Fiscal Services                                   .00             .00             .02-            .00             .02     .00 %
 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 266 Security Services                            8,767.00        1,187.35        5,055.15             .00        3,711.85   42.33 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                        72,514.00             .00             .00             .00       72,514.00  100.00 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                         3,801.00             .00             .00             .00        3,801.00  100.00 %
 282 Communication Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 283 Staff Services                                 390.00             .00          390.00             .00             .00     .00 %
 284 Support Services Tech                             .00             .00      355,445.85             .00      355,445.85-    .00 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                            70,840.00             .00             .00             .00       70,840.00  100.00 %
 331 Community Activities                       161,394.00        7,303.83       18,162.17       15,922.20      127,309.63   78.88 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                      8,667.00             .00             .00             .00        8,667.00  100.00 %
 361 Welfare Activities                          17,283.00          977.45        5,047.60             .00       12,235.40   70.79 %
 371 Non-Public Schl Pupils                      37,219.00        3,511.14        6,929.12          187.54       30,102.34   80.87 %
 391 Other Community Services                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 411 Payments Oth K-12/In Stat                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

15 FEDERAL GRANTS                  * TOTAL    6,112,428.00      355,676.41    2,204,788.83    2,003,841.87    1,903,797.30   31.14 %

25 CAFETERIA

 252 Fiscal Services                             66,486.00        6,136.45       40,017.88       28,651.16        2,183.04-   3.28-%
 259 Other Business Services                     15,180.00        2,713.32       21,818.98             .00        6,638.98-  43.73-%
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     58,145.00        2,490.18       22,550.39             .00       35,594.61   61.21 %
 291 Pupil Activities                             4,163.00             .00             .00             .00        4,163.00  100.00 %
 297 Food Services                            6,219,499.00      425,788.26    2,921,726.05      252,901.38    3,044,871.57   48.95 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                    200,000.00             .00             .00             .00      200,000.00  100.00 %

25 CAFETERIA                       * TOTAL    6,563,473.00      437,128.21    3,006,113.30      281,552.54    3,275,807.16   49.90 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND

 259 Other Business Services                     50,100.00        4,001.43       25,603.53             .00       24,496.47   48.89 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                      1,802.00          875.99          875.99             .00          926.01   51.38 %
 283 Staff Services                                 300.00             .00             .00             .00          300.00  100.00 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                   333,183.00       27,275.72      186,901.22        1,500.00      144,781.78   43.45 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    875,737.00       92,495.64      433,340.18             .00      442,396.82   50.51 %
 391 Other Community Services                   220,563.00             .00      189,176.51             .00       31,386.49   14.23 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND        * TOTAL    1,481,685.00      124,648.78      835,897.43        1,500.00      644,287.57   43.48 %



 1/27/25  14.40.10                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  12/31   FISCAL PERIOD 06   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         4

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  1/27/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

27 PRESCHOOL FUND

 118 Pre-school                                 412,594.00       42,808.33      209,487.26             .00      203,106.74   49.22 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     75,831.00        6,468.42       42,584.04        3,124.87       30,122.09   39.72 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                     6,600.00             .00          898.96             .00        5,701.04   86.37 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    574,887.00       43,342.04      297,761.71       69,169.66      207,955.63   36.17 %

27 PRESCHOOL FUND                  * TOTAL    1,069,912.00       92,618.79      550,731.97       72,294.53      446,885.50   41.76 %

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS

 296 Oth Stu/Schl Activity Exp                         .00             .00        5,700.00             .00        5,700.00-    .00 %

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS   * TOTAL             .00             .00        5,700.00             .00        5,700.00-    .00 %

31 2025 SERIES I DEBT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

31 2025 SERIES I DEBT              * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 639 fund modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00    1,164,920.77             .00    1,164,920.77-    .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER                   * TOTAL             .00             .00    1,164,920.77             .00    1,164,920.77-    .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00      416,184.69             .00      416,184.69-    .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00      416,184.69             .00      416,184.69-    .00 %

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00      926,875.00             .00      926,875.00-    .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00      926,875.00             .00      926,875.00-    .00 %



 1/27/25  14.40.10                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  12/31   FISCAL PERIOD 06   YEAR 2025       WORKING                   PAGE         5

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  1/27/25      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

41 BUILDING & SITE 2025 SERIES I

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00       78,500.00       78,500.00-    .00 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                     2,628,157.00             .00             .00             .00    2,628,157.00  100.00 %
 452 Site Improvement Services               28,789,667.00             .00    3,618,233.26             .00   25,171,433.74   87.43 %
 453 Architectur & Eng Servs                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services               78,582,176.00             .00    3,618,233.26-            .00   82,200,409.26  104.60 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

41 BUILDING & SITE 2025 SERIES I   * TOTAL  110,000,000.00             .00             .00       78,500.00  109,921,500.00   99.92 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 639 fund modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008                 * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 646 FUND MOD-2008 BLDG&SITE                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE     * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND

 298 Oth Priv Purpose Trust Ex                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND                * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

83 Compensated Absence Internal S

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

83 Compensated Absence Internal S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

** GRAND TOTALS  266,272,874.00   11,518,341.68   65,601,397.95   49,432,434.29  151,239,041.76   56.79 %
 *BUDGET # 01 Working                                   WORKING



Keith Howell 
  SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
  ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  

  BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

Beth Disbrow 
  DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6312 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross   John Da Via Sandra Hernden Andrew Parski Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY   TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

Hilary E. Dubay  Amelia A. Servial Sharon L. Ross Terri M. Spencer Mary L. Hilton Adam D. Lipski Shane W. Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

Initiator: 

Board Meeting: 

Agenda Item:  

Kathy Konon, CPA  

February 10, 2025 

Quarterly Budget Update 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other    _______________________ 

Background: 
The purpose of the Comparative Statement is to compare current year-to-date revenues 
and expenditures with those of the prior year. It also displays the current year’s Board-
approved budget alongside the year-to-date projected budget. 

Current Status: 
The quarterly budget update as of December 31, 2024 is attached. 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and is subject to approval by the 
Board of Education.  Administration will recommend that the Board motion to approve 
the Quarterly Budget at their next Regular Board Meeting. 

KK/jh 

http://www.lc-ps.org/






Keith Howell 
  SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
  ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  

  BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

Beth Disbrow 
   DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6312 FAX 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross   John Da Via Sandra Hernden Andrew Parski Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY   TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

Initiator:      

Board Meeting: 

Agenda Item:  

Kathy Konon, CPA 

February 10, 2025

Payment Registers 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other    _______________________ 

Background: 
The Payment Register for All Funds is presented to the Board of Education each month for 
review, per the Consent Agenda. All funds for each check run for the month are summarized and 
totaled by fund and check run.  The detail documents are included with the signatures of two 
Board members.  

Current Status: 
The Payment Register for All Funds are presented as of December 31, 2024, as follows: 

• December 3, 2024

• December 13, 2024

• Purchase Card Reports for November 2024 (reviewed)

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and is subject to approval by the Board 
of Education.  Administration will recommend that the Board motion to approve the Payment 
Register at their next Regular Board Meeting. 

KK/jh 







































































































Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                      
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Sandra Hernden Andrew Parski Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

        
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: February 10, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Bid Award Recommendations  
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other:  ______________________ 

 
 

Background: 
The award of bids and Requests for Proposal require the approval of the Board of Education.   

 
Current Status: 
As of December 31, 2024, there is no recommendations meet the requirements.  
.  
 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration is presenting for 

informational purposes only. 

 
 
KK/jh 
 



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
  ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  

  BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

Beth Disbrow 
    DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6312 FAX 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski Al Doss    Sharon Ross   John Da Via Sandra Hernden Andrew Parski Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY   TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

Initiator: 

Board Meeting: 

Agenda Item:  

Kathy Konon, CPA 

February 10, 2025 

Purchases 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other    _______________________ 

Background: 
During the normal course of business, district personnel will purchase items needed to 
administer the business operations of the schools or administrative offices.  In order to 
provide a review process of the purchases, the board has established a policy that all 
purchases in excess of $10,000 from the building and site fund and general fund 
purchases in excess of the state’s competitive bid threshold (currently at $30,512.00) be 
reported to the board on a monthly basis. 

Current Status: 
As of January 31, 2025, there are two purchases that meet the Board requirements. 

Fund Vendor Description Amount 
General MISD Telecommunication Services fee based on 

Unaudited Student Count October 2024 
(9230.91) at $14.00 per Student 

$129,232.74 

General MISD Software Fee Based on the Unaudited 
October 2024 student Count (9230.91 
Students) at $4.75 per student 

$43,846.82 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and is subject to approval by the 
Board of Education.  Administration will recommend that the Board motion to approve 
the purchases at their next Regular Board Meeting.  

KK/jh 











Keith Howell 
  SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
  ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  

  BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

Beth Disbrow 
  DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6312 FAX 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross   John Da Via Sandra Hernden Andrew Parski Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY   TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

Initiator: 

Board Meeting: 

Agenda Item:  

Kathy Konon, CPA 

February 10, 2025 

Overtime Report 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other    _______________________ 

Background: 
This report provides the Board with a monthly overtime variance summary for the 2024-
2025 fiscal year. It compares the current month's actual paid overtime hours with those 
of the same month in the previous fiscal year. Additionally, it presents the year-to-date 
overtime hours for the current fiscal year alongside the total overtime hours incurred 
during the 2024 fiscal year. 

Current Status: 
The report for December 31, 2024 has been reviewed by the respective administrator of 
each building/department.  

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and is subject to approval by the 
Board of Education.  Administration will recommend that the Board motion to approve 
the Overtime Report at their next Regular Board Meeting.  

KK/jh 



 December  December  Difference  FY2025  FY2024 

 2024-25  2023-24  Over (Under) 

 Year-to- 

Date  Total OT 

Operations & Maintenance:             

Custodians 378.36         839.77                        (461.41) 1,729.61                   5,010.38 

Food & Nutrition 11.15           63.70                            (52.55) 29.80                           264.23 

Grounds 52.01           7.66                               44.35 421.65                         332.36 

Maintenance 32.04           31.08                               0.96 200.48                         339.97 

Warehouse -               0.41                                (0.41) 1.76                                 5.83 

Transportation - Bus Drivers 163.50         671.53                        (508.03) 1,214.25                   4,757.33 

Transportation - Mechanics 57.95           17.80                             40.15 270.70                         319.14 

Transportation - Dispatch/Secretary 0.00 3.50                                (3.50) 0.00                     3.50 

Business Office:

Payroll 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Technology

Clerical 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Buildings:

Curriculum/Athletics/Swim Mgmt -                             9.38                    (9.38) 17.76                             19.75 

Elementary Secretary 0.83             0.00                     0.83 41.49                             11.55 

Secondary Secretary 6.55               2.50                     4.05 6.55                   18.50 

Elementary Administrative Aide 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Programs & Other:

Aides Instructional & Band 0.50             6.60                                (6.10) 10.28                             66.26 

Aides Noninstructional - Noon Aide 57.39           91.30                            (33.91) 230.21                         579.19 

Aides Noninstructional - Supervisory 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00                     7.67 

Aides Special Ed 0.00 21.20                            (21.20) 0.00                   21.93 

Child Care-Secretary/Teacher 5.01             0.00                     5.01 14.32           1.53                   

SDC/SACC 4.23             67.24                            (63.01) 147.17         587.03               

     Total           769.52        1,833.67             (1,064.15)        4,336.03            12,346.15 

L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OVERTIME HOUR REPORT

for Fiscal Year 2024/2025



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
  ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  

  BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

Beth Disbrow 
  DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6312 FAX 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross   John Da Via Sandra Hernden Andrew Parski Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY   TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

Initiator: 

Board Meeting: 

Agenda Item:  

Kathy Konon, CPA 

February 10, 2025 

Summary of Investments 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other    _______________________ 

Background: 
Part of fiscal management is to invest available cash funds in order to earn income for 
the district.  As investing does include risk, both interest rate risk and credit risk, the 
board has established a policy that a report on investments be provided on a monthly 
basis. 

Current Status: 
The report reflected in the document is for the time period as of December 31, 2024 
and includes the investing institution, type of investment, amount invested, interest 
rate as well as which fund made the investment. 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and is subject to approval by the 
Board of Education.  Administration will recommend that the Board motion to approve 
the Summary of Investments at their next Regular Board Meeting. 

KK/jh 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of investments as of: December 31, 2024  

 

   

Institution Type  Amount Rate Date 

Purchased 

Due Date Fund Number 

of Days 

 

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking 

 

$9,615,753.05 

 

N/A 

 

Varies 

 

Immediate 

 

GF 

 

- 

        

JPMorgan Chase Checking $1,068,963.16 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking $23,532,742.52 N/A Varies Immediate DF - 

Fifth Third Bank Depository $2,009,785.64 N/A Varies Immediate  GF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $987,391.59 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $2,725,114.85 N/A Varies Immediate  CF - 

        

MILAF 

 

MILAF 

 

Investment 

 

Investment 

$6,135,130.86 

 

$984,855.40 

N/A 

 

N/A 

N/A 

 

N/A 

Varies 

 

Varies 

GF 

 

IF 

- 

 

- 

MILF Investment $1,046,443.12 N/A N/A Varies CF - 

MILAF Investment $168,254.50 N/A N/A Varies Scholarship 

Fund 

- 

Calendar YTD 

Accumulative Earnings 

for all Funds 

 $255,800.48 N/A N/A Varies Interest - 

NOTE:        

State Aid Payment –  

December 20, 2024 

Deposited to JPMorgan 

Chase                                      

 $8,927,314.92  N/A    

 

B&S = Building & Site 

CF = Cafeteria Fund 

DF = Debt Fund 

GF = General Fund 

 IF = Internal Fund 

  

 

  

 

 Rates as of December 31, 2024: 
Federal Reserve  

     Non-Asset Backed     30 days       N/A 

          60 days       N/A 

     Asset Backed         30 days       4.38 

          60 days       4.41 

 

Note: N/A. indicates trade data insufficient to 

support calculation of the particular rate. 



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
  ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  

  BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

Beth Disbrow 
  DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6312 FAX 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross   John Da Via Sandra Hernden Andrew Parski Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY   TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

Initiator: 

Board Meeting: 

Agenda Item:  

Kathy Konon, CPA 

February 10, 2025 

Summary of Wire Transfers 

 Board Action Required  CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other    _______________________ 

Background: 
In order to conduct financial management transactions, wiring money to and from the 
district’s bank accounts is part of the business office operations.  To provide oversight of 
this process a monthly report is prepared by the accountant.  The report includes the 
date of transaction, the bank accounts involved in the transactions, the reason for the 
wire transfer, the amount and the fund requesting the transfer. 

Current Status: 
The report submitted is as of December 31, 2024, and summarizes the wire transfers for 
the General, Debt, Cafeteria and Trust & Agency funds. 

Future Direction (Comments or Motion)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and is subject to approval by the 
Board of Education.  Administration will recommend that the Board motion to approve 
the Summary of Wire Transfers at their next Regular Board Meeting.  

KK/jh 



 

L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Summary of General, Debt, Cafeteria and Trust & Agency Funds Wire Activity  

December 1 through December 31, 2024 

 

  1 of 1  

1 12/01/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

BMO Purchasing Card Activity through November 

27th 

($170,150.91) ACH GF 

2 12/13/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Wells Fargo Bank 12/13/24 Annuities Funding ($141,909.39) ACH GF 

3 12/13/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 12/13/24 PR Direct Deposit ($1,647,127.09) Wire GF 

4 12/13/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 12/13/24 Net Payroll Deductions ($316,626.84) Wire GF 

5 12/27/24 JPMorgan Chase 

DF 

Wells Fargo Bank 12/27/24 Annuities Funding ($140,053.22) ACH GF 

6 12/27/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 12/27/24 Net Payroll Deductions ($1,743,636.66) Wire GF 

7 12/27/24 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 12/27/24 Net Payroll Deductions ($331,286.00) Wire GF 

 



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE 

                                      
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 

 
 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss    Sharon. Ross         John Da Via Sandra Hernden Andrew Parski Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

        

             

           
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: February 10, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Accounts Payable Check Register 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
The accounts payable check listing is reviewed by members of the board of education. They may review 
the paperwork, if necessary, and each will sign the check register. 

 
 
Current Status: 
The following Board Members are assigned to approve the Accounts Payable Check Register on the 
following dates: 
 

Review Dates Approvers 

February 27 & 28, 2025 S. Sellers & S.Hernden 

March 17 & 18, 2025 A. Doss & S. Hernden 

April 3 & 4, 2025 S. Ross & A. Doss 
 

 
*The Purchase Card Report for January 2024 will be included with the February 26, 2025 check run. 
 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This status is provided as a schedule reminder.   

 
KK/jh 



Keith Howell 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Kathy Konon, CPA 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

    

Beth Disbrow 
                                   DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE  

                                                    
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Al Doss    Sharon Ross         John Da Via Sandra Hernden Andrew Parski Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

   

   
Initiator:  Kathy Konon, CPA 
 
Board Meeting: February 10, 2025 
 
Agenda Item:  Recommendation to Approve the 2025 Summer Tax Collection Rates 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
Background: 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools has traditionally partnered with local municipalities to collect 
summer school taxes. Each year, the tax collection rate is approved by both the Board of 
Education and the respective municipal boards. With improved interest rates on deposited 
funds, the district has established an agreement with municipalities to share the interest earned 
on these funds. 
 
Current Status: 
Macomb Township will collect 100% of the 2025 summer taxes at an increased rate of $4.20 per 
parcel. Meanwhile, Clinton Township, Chesterfield Township, and Harrison Township will collect 
taxes at a rate of $4.00 per parcel, with no increase at this time. Each township is responsible for 
accounting for and remitting a prorated portion of the interest earned on the taxes collected on 
behalf of the district. Additionally, the district will continue to bill the MISD and Macomb 
Community College for their respective portions of the tax collection fee for each township. 

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the 2025 Summer Tax Collection Rates at 

their next Regular Board Meeting. 

 
KK/jh 









Keith Howell 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Michael W. Van Camp 
INTERIM ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
COORDINATOR FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6311 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski Al Doss Sharon Ross John Da Via Sandra Hernden Andrew Parski Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 

AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
Initiator:  Mike Van Camp 
  
Board Meeting:  February 10, 2025  
 
Agenda Item:  Employment Recommendations 
  

Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 

Background:   
The attached list contains candidates who have been recommended for employment in the 
position/building that is indicated, as well as current employees who are being recommended for a 
change in some aspect of their employment status.  
 
Current Status:   
The Human Resources department has received, from the appropriate administrator, a 
recommendation for the action listed along with any required documentation. Interviews and reference 
checks, if applicable, have been completed.  The Employment Recommendations are being submitted 
for approval by the Board. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the Employment Recommendations as 
presented. 
 
 
MV/jd 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Employment Recommendations

February 10, 2025

Page 1

# * Name Assignment Remarks Effective Degree/Step

INSTRUCTIONAL

1 * Fenwick, Laura 1.0 FTE Math/Science Teacher, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - North

Replaces Stephanie Heugh 2/3/2025 MA, Step 9

$69,333

2 Wit, Sarah School Social Worker, Harry L. Wheeler 

Community Center & Administrative 

Offices

Resignation 2/20/2025

1 Allen, Star SACC Aide, Yacks Elementary Resignation 1/24/2025

2 * Cummings, Jamie Cook/Cashier Class I, L'Anse Creuse High 

School North

Replaces Erika Mahaffey 1/23/2025 $15.00 

3 Dupuis, Ashley One on One Special Education 

Paraprofessional, South River Elementary

Resignation 1/31/2025

4 Dzieszkowski, Anita Supervisor for Human Resources, Harry L. 

Wheeler Community Center & 

Administrative Offices

Replacing Coordinator for 

Human Resources position 

2/11/2025 Per Non-Affiliated 

Administrator 

Handbook

5 * Fowler, Shawn Counseling Office Clerk, Classification II, 

L'Anse Creuse Middle School - Central

Replaces Cynthia Oresky 1/20/2025 $16.17 

6 * Gianakis, Chelsea Preschool Aide, Anna Mae Burdi Center Replaces Shelby Vincent 1/27/2025 $15.49 

7 * Hooven, Andrew Varsity Head Baseball Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse High School - North

Replaces Dale Campbell 1/31/2025 Per Contract 

Supplemental

8 Kerr, Sophia 8th Grade Girls Basketball Coach, L'Anse 

Creuse Middle School - East

Replaces Denton Casier 1/6/2025 Per Contract 

Supplemental

9 * Krause, Talia Varsity Girls Basketball Assistant Coach, 

L'Anse Creuse High School

New Position 11/18/2024 $1,500 Flat Rate 

10 * Kupgisch, Jeremy Computer Technician, Larry F. Brender 

Support Services Center

New Position 1/20/2025 $46.946.30

11 Nielubowicz, Brent Special Olympics  Soccer, Harry L. Wheeler 

Community Center & Administrative 

Offices

Replaces Michelle Moceri 1/15/2025 Per Contract 

Supplemental

NON-INSTRUCTIONAL



Employment Recommendations

February 10, 2025

Page 2

12 Nielubowicz, Brent Special Olympics Winter Sports - Shared 

position, Harry L. Wheeler Community 

Center & Administrative Offices

Replaces Michelle Moceri 1/15/2025 Per Contract 

Supplemental

13 Pasque, Jena Special Olympics  Soccer, Harry L. Wheeler 

Community Center & Administrative 

Offices

Replaces Michelle Moceri 1/15/2025 Per Contract 

Supplemental

14 Pasque, Jena Special Olympics Winter Sports - Shared 

position, Harry L. Wheeler Community 

Center & Administrative Offices

Replaces Michelle Moceri 1/15/2025 Per Contract 

Supplemental

15 Shea, Lisa Class Sponsor for Class of 2026, L'Anse 

Creuse High School

Resignation 1/31/2025

*New Employee to the District

Years of service reflect LCPS service, only, and does not reflect purchased service or service in other school districts.

Updated items are in red.


	2.10.25 COTW Agenda
	F.1. Bond Ratification Resolution combined
	Bond Ratification Resolution
	Resolution Doc

	F.2 Technology Design Services Recommendation combined
	F.2 Technology Design Services Recommendation
	F.2. Technology Design Services Bid Evaluation Worksheet

	F.3 Lobbestael, Tenniswood, Yacks Flooring combined
	F.3 Lobbestael, Tenniswood, Yacks Flooring
	F.3 BP 25-01 Award Rec - 2-5-25 Flooring
	F.3 LCPS BP 25-01 Bid Tab Flooring

	G.1. MASB Candidate Selection for Vote combined
	G.1. MASB Candidate Selection for Vote
	G.1. 2025_bod_elections_booklet

	H.1. Student Travel 2.17.25
	H.2.a Consortiums 2.17.25
	H.2.b. Early College 2.17.25
	H.2.c. IAM 2.17.25
	H.2.d SMTEC 2.17.25
	I1 Budget Report
	I2 Quarterly Budget
	I3 Payment Registers
	I4 Bid Award Recommendations
	I5 Purchases
	I6 Overtime Report
	I7 Summary of Investments
	I8 Summary of Wire Transfers
	I9 Accounts Payable Check Register Approval Reminder
	I10 Recommendation to Approve the Summer Tax Collection Rates
	J.1. Employment Recommendations - February 10, 2025 combined
	J.1 3-Box Employment Recommendation - 02-10-2025 - Committee of the Whole
	J.1. Employment Recommendations - February 10, 2025




